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PREFACE

The history of Hawk Point from its origins in the prairies
surrounding the town site to the present was in the major sense
written by Hawk Point itself -- or more accurately by its people.
Hence the title: “Hawk Point Tells Its Story".

To a large degree, this is an oral history of the community,
told by word of mouth by many citizens who remember their
own experiences or can relate the experiences told to them by
others.

Hawk Point relates its own story by documentation as well.
The chroniclers of the town government minutes, the keepers
of the church records, those who saved business data all
contributed heavily to the book.

Another major source was that premier recorder of
contemporary history in any age - the newspaper.

The authors of the book merely have collected, compiled and
organized the mass of material presented to them and now offer
it in what is hoped to be a readable and understandable manner.

These points should be made:

(1) Not every piece of material could be used because of the
volume available. Therefore, a selection process was
necessary.

(2) The authors cannot vouch for the accuracy of every fact
presented, but we can attest to the faithful attempt to
accurately relate material given by sources and to
reconcile the inevitable contradictions. It must be noted
that much that is included is legend and folklore and that
time can play tricks on memory.

(3) The authors felt it imperative that this work be done
now, within the lifetime of those who have lived
throughout the major portion of the history of Hawk
Point. To have waited much longer would have been to
have lost that history forever.
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Hawk Point about 1905

THE TOWN'S ROOTS

Long before the coming of the Kennedys, Masheks, Tomeks,
Duncans or Howells, the prairie hawks came to roost in a point
of woods where timber left off and open, rolling hills began.
Quite naturally, the area came to be known as hawk's point,
then the Hawk Point community and finally the town of Hawk
Point.

Early settlers, farmers mostly, began drifting into that
section of Lincoln County during the first half of the 19th
century to stake out homesteads and start new lives on the land
that afforded more open space than the eastern regions they
had left.

A first, their communities centered on the church as the
primary social institution of the time. Nearly all the churches of
the area had their origins in the mid-1800's, the Catholic
community springing up in the Bohemian settlement at Mashek
northeast of Hawk Point, and the Baptists, Christians and

JOHN MARTINEK HOME
First building in Hawk Point

Methodists on the east, north and west of the present town site.

Hawk Point's first public official undoubtedly was the
postmaster who may have been either John Kennedy or Oliver
Holmes. According to papers of former U.S. Rep. Clarence
Cannon, the first Hawk Point post office was established on
Feb. 20, 1840, with Mr. Kennedy as postmaster. The other
version of the establishment of a post office is more detailed,
except no dates are given.

On property now belonging to Vannie Vejvoda, in fact at the
corner of his yard, the post office reportedly was established in
the farm home built by Mr. Holmes and he was put in charge.
Federal Authorities had heeded the application for mail service
for the growing population of the area. The same account has it

LOUIS HIMMEL STORE
1910 - sat where Hawk Point Hardware stands



Hawk Point - 1907 or before

that the name Hawk Point was officially adopted at that time
because of the roosting place near the post office site, which is
along the first road west of Hawk Point and perhaps two miles
or so south.

Mr. Holmes supposedly was postmaster for a number of
years - the mail then was carried from Troy once & week (this is
where Bill Doll Sr. now lives) before the office was moved to the
home of another pioneer, Armstrong Kennedy.

There is no indication what relation, if any, Armstrong
Kennedy was to the John Kennedy mentioned in Clarence
Cannon's papers, but in 1840, Armstrong Kennedy's family had
been in Lincoln County for 20 years, so John conceivably, could
have been a son. The Democratic political tradition that to this
day is strong in Hawk Point was evidenced in the Kennedy
family. Armstrong Kennedy was affiliated with the party and
later his son Alexander likewise would be holding office as
justice of the peace under that label.

After another interlude during which Mr. Holmes was post-
master, the post office was moved in 1860 to the Alexander
Kennedy home where he took over the office he would hold
until his death in 1895.

Alexander Kennedy also was Hawk Point's first merchant,
establishing a store in his home in 1860. This major figure in
the community’s early history was married three times and
twice widowed. His first two wives were sisters, first Sarah
Howell and then Mary Howell. His third wife was Mrs. Rhoda
Williams.

A year after Mr. Kennedy's death, his store building and
contents burned to the ground. Merchandising quickly was
taken over by Alex Owens and a man named Sparks who built a
store that over the following eight or so years would have an
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H. H. Eversmeyer Store

CONFECTIONERY 1910
John Witthaus - Barber

interesting existence. The store was built on property now
owned by Hurley Creech.

Mr. Sparks bought out Mr. Owens and put the store on
wheels and moved it to his home. Then in about 1900, Mr.
Sparks sold the store to W. L. Duncan who put it on wheels and
transported it to the farm property he had purchased from
Alexander Kennedy.

Four years later, the store building took to wheels once again
and was moved into town, behind the present site of the
Enterprise building. It held the stock while the Enterprise was
being built and later was used as the poultry house for the
Enterprise.

By this time, the Burlington Railroad was coming through
Hawk Point, houses were being built, more businesses were
being established.

Hawk Point was changing from a collection of scattered farm
homes centering as a community on a store and post office into
a bona fide town.

Before the town was established, there was a store where
Leonard O'Hanlon lives and also a post office there, though not
necessarily the Hawk Point office. This was in about 1895.

Tom Blair ran the store at first. Later, George Nasser
operated a grocery on the site and lived upstairs in the present
house, which he built. Others who operated a store at that
location were Henry Meyer, Charles Gililland and Frazier
Riddle until it closed in 1916.

Charles Broz Store - 1987



Hawk Point Windmill and Water Tank on right

Some of the early settlers in and around Hawk Point included
Peter Rinaman who homesteaded land his great-grandson
Derwood Rinaman still farms and Sheridan Howell, whose land
has remained in the family more than 100 years.

The 1878 atlas shows that these men came into Lincoln
County or were born there during the early to mid-1800's:
Peter Keller, blacksmith, S. D. Cannon, G. H. Copher, Henry T.
Lansche, Alexander Kennedy, Henry Frank, Jacob Mosely, J.
R. Witt, P. M. Colbert, A. L. Kennedy and E. D. Ownes, a
Baptist minister.

The atlas also shows these landowners in and around Hawk
Point in 1878: Ben Kelly, J. H. Bishop, J. Havener, C. R. Abel,
T. Bishop, G. H. Copher, H. P. Allen, I. J. Stewart, J. J. Allen,
J. W. Skurlock, J. Abbott, R. J. Lockwood, T. E. Tutt, E.
Overall, J. H. Walton, D. E. Barley, J. A. Elmore, W. H.
Elmore, L. Johnson, J. M. Russell, J. H. Mourning, W. E.
Shelton, W. F. Slavens, E. Baker, A. J. Elsberry, S. J. Bowles
and M. H. Burgess.

Hawk Point is and has always been first and foremost, a
farming community, existing in large part as a trading center
for the agricultural society surrounding it. Farming obviously
has changed greatly in the century and a quarter since settlers
began to migrate to the area.

Dr. Joe Dnggs residence - 1908

South side 1907

For one thing, early day farming was on a smaller scale but
was more diversified. Farmers on the one hand operated more
of an independent unit in terms of the commodities they needed
to buy but were more interdependent in terms of each other.
That is, before the days of one man and many machines as the
farm producers, neighbors would have to pitch in to help with
butchering and harvest.

The typical cash and feed farm was perhaps of 40 to 100 acres
in size and produced corn, wheat, oats and hay as crops and
possibly some tobacco for home use. Hogs, chickens, ducks,
geese, turkeys, milk cows and beef cattle made up the livestock
roll and the produce from these, principally chickens, eggs,
cream and butter, were used in a barter fashion to obtain other
goods at the stores in town.

In the early days, these would have been Himmels, Tomeks
and the Enterprise. When farmers said their dairy and poultry
products set their table, that is what they meant.

Farm diet was heavy on pork and poultry and during the
warm seasons the fresh green vegetables from the garden.
During the winter, farmer’s wives would raid the fruit cellar for
the goods that they had canned.

Hog butchering day meant work from sun-up to dusk and
usually involved some neighbors. The results would be ham,
sausage, lard, head cheese and crackling, all done in one
winter’s day.

Most farmers of the day made their own soap, commonly
called grandma's lye soap. Meat was kept in the smokehouse
and some produce was buried under the snow or dirt to
preserve the fresh taste.
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IDA COLBERT HOME
One of 10 oldest houses

A TOWN IS BORN

If ever Hawk Point could have been described as a boom
town, it must have been from 1904 until about 1909 when much
of the original town proper sprang up on the north side of the
new Burlington Railroad tracks.

Previously, the Hawk Point Community had been scattered
about the prairie. The post office, what stores there were, the
churches - these all were in the country, in rural settings.

But like a magnet, the railroad attracted business and
residents. The Enterprise was built in 1904 on its present site.
Tomek's store went up the same year on the opposite side of
Main Street and up the block.

William Elliott opened his lumber yard and hardware store
on the present Dulin-Harrell site shortly after the town began
to grow.

William Martinek came from Olney in 1904 to start a machine
shop that has remained in that family to this day.

The railroad depot was built in 1904. Hotels soon followed to
accommodate the business traffic the hustle and bustle of the
little town had stimulated. One hotel was on the east side of
Main Street in the middle of the block. This hotel was originally
the Jones. The date of its construction is not certain, but a
picture taken in 1904 shows it wasn't yet built at that time.
Tullie and Dullie Jones ran it for five months and then it was
sold to William Hammond.

He operated it until about 1923 when he sold it to the Catholic

H. H. Eversmeyer Residence - 1908
Perry Allen Home - 1977

PIEPER HOUSE
One of 10 oldest houses. Antigue shop owned by Bill and
Margaret Pieper 1968-1975.

Church which used it as a priest’s home.

The hotel had eight rooms upstairs, a large living room,
dining room and kitchen. Rates were $1 per night and 50 cents
per meal, or $8 a week for room and board.

Hawk Point soon after its initial build up added an industrial
employer, the Blue Oak Handle Co. The factory was
established in about 1906 on land now occupied by Bob
McCarty's trailer court. The company also had a barn where
Gola Gordon now lives.

The plant, which employed about 15 men most of the time,
made handles for all kinds of hand tools. It had hickory and oak
stored all over the yard and a pond for steam to run the
machines.

The manager was Guy Meeks. Some of the employees were
Doug Smith, the Sparks brothers, Pen Shelker, Clarence
McMahan, Joe Myrick, Clyde and Bill Cannon. The factory
closed down sometime between 1910 and 1912.

A large square two-story building was erected near the depot
during the early days of Hawk Point's existence. It first was
the home of J. B. Gallagher, owner of the Hawk Point
Transcript. Mr. Gallagher used the lower level as the
newspaper office.

CLIFFORD COLBERT HOME
Built by Joe Tomek Sr. 1904-1905



LISTENING IN
C. A. Harper, R. H. Brown, Joseph Tomek, Jr., W. E. Giles,
H. H. Eversmeyer, 0. E. Barley, Charles J. Broz, and Mrs. R.
H. Brown.

Later the building became the Joe Burgess Hotel, from 1922
to 1928. The hotel had eight rooms and served meals. It was a
handy stop for drummers getting off the train. The building,
then the residence of Felix Steiger, was destroyed by fire in
1941.

A bank was soon started in the new town. The Baptist and
Christian Churches moved from their rural location into town in
1904. The Catholic Church would follow later.

John Kliever, who came to Hawk Point to work on the
railroad, stayed to start a blacksmith shop just west of the
lumber yard. It was the same site that his son Eddie would
occupy as a blacksmith for many years until his death in 1956.

Dr. Foreman came from Warrenton to set up practice in 1904
or 1905. His office was in a room that is now part of Clayton
Duff's house. Houses, of course, were going up all over the
town site.

The first one in town probably was built by Charles Owens
where John Martinek lives now. Joe Tomek Sr. built the house
where Clifford Colbert now lives in about 1904.

Other early-day Hawk Point houses still standing are Dan
McCarty's, Ida Colbert's, Florence Begeman's, Perry Allen's
and Mrs. Pieper's.

Another business was one started by Rudolph Holt, who
came to Hawk Point from Moscow Mills, probably in 1904. He
was a tinner by trade, who reputedly could make about

DAN McCARTY HOME
One of five oldest houses - erected about 1906.

Elda Tappmeyer
Husband ran a general
store about 1908
Emma and Elda

Tappmeyer

anything out of tin. His business was where the stone building
is now on Main Street.

Mr. Holt, who had had a stroke that twisted his mouth and
face, put the tin on a house built by a Mr. Lansche in 1904. The
house had no nails and still stands.

Two other businessmen who arrived in Hawk Point during
this period were Louis Himmel and Charles Broz.

Mr. Himmel came from Linn's Mill in 1906 and opened a
furniture store across from the present location of the laundry.
Later he expanded into general merchandise and moved his
business to the present location of the Hawk Point Hardware
Store.

Mr. Himmel had the reputation of being the buyer and seller
of just about any kind of merchandise, including animal skins
and farm products.

He also had a flair for the persuasive advertisement, as
evidenced by this newspaper ad: “There is a right corset for
medium, stout, short, tall women. Each corset is guaranteed
not to rust, break or tear.”

Mr. Himmel was a small man who had a hump on his back
from an accident.

Mr. Broz, a native of Czechoslovakia, bought a harness
business from Herman Werges in about 1910. He had learned
his trade in the old country. The first location was north of
Tomek's store, but five years later, he moved to a building just

Granger Medicine Show - 1928



Hawk Point Band - 1924

south of Tomek’s where he branched out into the sale of shoes.
Later, he sold Goodyear tires.

Mr. Broz and his wife ran the store until his death in 1959.

An early-day general store was Tappmeyer’s which opened in
1907 where the funeral chapel is now. It was not in business
very long.

An early figure in Hawk Point, important in commerce and
farming, was W. B. Howell, who operated a 300-acre farm at the
western edge of the present town site.

He was married to Kate Nichols and they had 10 children. His
first wife was the daughter of Alexander Kennedy, a Hawk
Point pioneer. She died shortly after their marriage in 1880.

The Silex Index of 1902 praised Mr. Howell as being “a
self-made man, starting in life with comparatively nothing. He
has by industry, enterprise and thrift accumulated around and
about him a competency that not only insures the comforts for
his family but commands the confidence and admiration of his
friends.” The paper described Mr. Howell as Democrat and a
member of the Christian Church who is known by neighbors as
“charitable and upright”.

Another early Hawk Point settler, one who still lives there,
was Ed Fredde, who has a good memory for some of the flavor
of living during that time.
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DR.PRUITT'S OFFICE — 1912
Russell Monroe and Loyd Duwncan. Phillip Meister’s shop,
black building.

FASSE THRASHING CREW — 1912
William Fasse, Charley Fasse, Sam Fasse, Sid Shelton, Bill
Reynolds, Charles Reynolds, Henry Krueger, Charley Martin,
Henry Windmann, Harry Martin.

He recalls that in about 1909, a big picnic was held at John
Knizel's. A Walton boy with a couple of girls in a buggy was
stopped in the middle of the road when two of the Upson boys
ran into them with their surrey. The two were going to fight
Walton, so a race into town ensued, with Mr. Fredde in hot
pursuit behind the two horse drawn vehicles. When they all got
into town, the marshal, Silas Davis, wanted to know what was
going on, so everyone pretended it was just a little game.

Meanwhile, the town continued to build. The elevator was
erected in 1907, to stand until 1976 when it was razed to make
way for new facilities.

Other businesses during the first several years of Hawk
Point's existence included: Harrison Dunard’s butcher shop,
Joe Burgess's rooming house, Mrs. Shannon's hat shop, Tobe
Barley's horse sales and Joe Brown's shoe cobbling shop in the
old Shell Building.

Another business was started a little later in 1914 by William
Fasse who ran a threshing machine in the summer and sawmill
in the winter. He started when he bought a house from George
Middlekamp, one now owned by Ida Colbert. . Mr. Fasse ran the
business until 1937.

The town was becoming fairly well populated. Joe Tomek

Mr. and Mrs. Rolla Logan



LOOKING EAST — 1930
First store. Enterprise. Davis Grist Mill. Alice Wing, Rose

COTTLE BUILDING

Himmel, Cleo Logan, Omer Himmel, Bill Logan.

Walter Cregger

Joe Burgess

W. R. and Billy Logan, bank, dentist, telephone office. glc:: g z::;m EZ:E};I%;I;;“
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can recall quite a number of Hawk Point and area residents Harry Brown Pearly Giles
from the period 1904-06. Doc Barley Frank Martinek
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Lonzo Crouse Andrew Crouch e itk J .Russell

John Brown Joe Martinek Jerry McCulloch Gola Gordon

Roland Howell Sam Daugherty o6 Elmors Toe Palmer

Edward Kumbera Henry Crouch L?:] Cisin Joe Sheets

J. C: Cr?uch Bob Upson Alex Owens W. F. Nicklin

Louis Himmel W.F. Upson Yokn Diuvis Charles Eames

Cabe Brown Harry Brown Lee Tuttle W. B. Howell

John Elliott W.F. Allen Lo Wit i Crcaik

Albert Shramek John Slavens Wi(laliar:i Wilson Johh Biihee

George Burgess Andy Kinion Piank BrozSs William Giles

Frank Himmel Dr. Prewitt William Rinaman Charles Tate

Mrs. W. Able John Ify-nn PrakStanck Mayron Sonner

J.H. Yeater Bob Kinion Hueh Mili
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Andrew Crouch James Brown

A.S. Witt John Withouse TOWN GOVERNMENT

John Slavens Joe Tomek Sr.

Black shed where Beck’s Garage stands. Betty, Louise, A. W.
Howell.

Within three years of Hawk Point's precipitous growth
starting in 1904, it became apparent to the town leaders that

some legal status was needed for the community.

FIRST STORE
Behind Enterprise — Bill, Ruth and Billy Logan






